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City of Seattle

Request For Proposal (RFP) # LAW-3160
SMC CODIFICATION SERVICES
Addendum
Date: 08/16/13

The following is additional information regarding RFP #LAW-3160, titled Seattle Municipal Code (SMC) Codification Services released on 
August 2, 2013.  Deadline for Questions has been The Proposal due date remains unchanged.  
This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.   Vendors should review the Q&A carefully as some of the responses have been reworded and/or clarified.  These written Q&A's take precedence over any verbal Q&A.

From:  Carmalinda Vargas, Sr. Buyer

City of Seattle Purchasing

Phone:  206-615-1123; Fax 206-233-5155

Email Address:  Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Response
	RFP Additions/Revisions/
Deletions

	1 
	08/07/13
	08/07/14
	Does the city plan to maintain an in-house version of the code as they do today?  If so, what format does the vendor need to provide to the city?


	No
	

	2 
	08/07/13
	08/07/14
	Will the city provide documentation for linking to ordinances hosted within the city’s site?


	Yes.  May consist of dynamic link (query)
	

	3 
	08/07/13
	08/07/14
	Will the vendor have to re-create all of the links that currently exist in the code hosted by the city?


	Yes
	

	4 
	08/07/13
	08/07/14
	Will the vendor have to provide a method for looking up recently approved legislation or pending legislation, similar to the footer following each code section on the city’s web site?


	No
	

	5 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Functional Requirements:

Can you provide more detail around the custom header and footer requested in H.1 of the RFP?

	Pending
	

	6 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Technical Requirements: 

D.1 Analytics – what does the city mean by provide statistics on “individual records accessed”?  Individual sections within the code?


	Pending
	 

	7 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Technical Requirements:

D.1 Analytics – does the summary of activity have to be provided as a push notification on a monthly basis, or can the information simply be furnished upon request?


	Pending
	

	8 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Desired Features:

B.1 Notification of updates – does this feature need to be available to all users of the code or just users within the city?


	Pending
	

	9 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Project Scope:

a. Does the city want the cost for a legal review of the entire SMC and/or the cost for a recodification of the entire SMC?
b. Do you want these two items set out as individual options?  
c. Are these options just for budgeting purposes or does the City intend on recodifying?  Or is this RFP intended to simply have the codifier supplement and host the Code online? 
d.  If the recodification option is elected does the City expect the project to be completed by July 1st 2014 per the Solicitation Schedule? 


	a. Pending

b. Pending

c. Pending

d. Yes.   


	

	10 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Desired Features:

G. - Codification of Seattle Administrative Code--Is this the same code as found in Title 3, Chapter 3.02, 3.02.010 through 3.02.130 or is there another Seattle Administrative Code and Department Rules?


	Pending
	

	11 
	
	Pending
	Desired Features:

G. 5 -What is considered Department Rules? 
Is Subtitle VI, Department Regulations, considered the Department Rules?


	Pending
	

	12 
	08/07/13
	08/07/13
	Desired Features:
G. 6- Codification-Should the vendors provide a cost to recodify Title 3 of the SMC?


	Yes
	

	13 
	08/07/13
	08/07/13
	Page 2, Business Activities Stated-Code and Charter are Approx 3,000 pages.  Code is 8 1/2 x 11, double sided paper-with one column:   Our records show the code format is double column print, printed on each side of a sheet of paper.  One sheet of paper equates to two printed pages.  We estimate the code to be 4,250 double column, printed pages.


	 Yes.  
	Business Activities
Strike:   

The Municipal Code and Charter are approximately 3,000 pages.  The Code is published on an 8 1/2 x 11, double sided paper with one column.     
REVISE:
The Municipal Code format is double column print, printed on each side of a sheet of paper.  One sheet of paper equates to two printed pages.  The estimated code is 4,250 double column, printed pages.

	14 
	08/07/13
	08/07/13
	Pricing Proposal:

14.1 A.5 - Does the 3,000 pages refer to an estimated number of pages changed per year or a printing of the code (we estimate the code to be 4,250 double column printed pages)?  Can the unit cost be based on a per page amount instead of an hourly amount?

14.2   For a recodification proposal should cost be based on 3,000 double column pages or 4,250 double column pages?  We estimate the total page count for all 4 volumes to be 4,250 double column pages.  This page count is based on our review of your code that we currently maintain.

14.3
A.8 - The question above applies to the Legal Review pricing also.  Do we base Legal Review on a 3,000 double column page code or 4,250 double column pages?


	14.1  Yes, unit cost can be based on per page amount.  See Response #13
 14.2  Yes

14.3  4.250 double column pages

	Delete Pricing Proposal and REPLACE with Pricing Proposal A.
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	15 
	08/07/13
	08/07/13
Pending
	Pricing Proposal:

15.1  
I - Does this mean posting the original ordinance on line for viewing prior to codifying it or does it mean codifying the ordinance electronically in between printed supplements like we do now?

15.2  L - Do you want to use 3,000, 4,000 double column pages or our page count of 4,250 double column pages?

15.3  M - Not sure what this means?  If it is Printing and Shipping, not sure what the printing will cover.  Will this be shipping of each quarterly supplement or shipment of a complete set of codes?  

15.4  Q - We don't think there will be Recodification costs for the code each year, unless you mean this to be the yearly supplement cost?


	15.1  Pending

15.2   Yes, 4,250

15.3 Pending

15.4 Pending
	

	16 
	08/07/13
	Pending
	Pricing Proposal:

16.1  R - Are you asking for a complete Legal Review of the code each year?

16.2  W.1 - Is there a new or separate publication other than Title 3 of the current SMC?  


	16.1 Pending

16.2  Pending
	

	17 
	08/09/13
	08/13/13
	9.2  Project Deliverables, paragraph I, #2.  
City States:   There will be copyright/use restrictions on any content of the online code in any format. 
	See Attachment #2 – Hosted Solution Contract, Section 15 (Ownership of Deliverables)  
	

	18 
	08/09/13
	08/13/13
	Is the City anticipating getting the code into the Vendor’s database first, and then if the City decides do the recodification after it’s in the Vendor’s database?

 
	The City would like the Vendor to propose the best approach, project schedule for City.  The Vendor may do this in the Project Management document.    
Approach will reflect in the pricing worksheet. 
	

	19 
	08/09/13
	08/13/13
	Does the Vendor need to include tax in their response? 
	No

	

	20 
	08/09/13
	08/13/13
	Insurance Requirement:

Does just the City need to be named as the Additional Insured or do you need the City and City Officials named?  
	“The City of Seattle” shall be named as an Additional Insured for primary and non-Contributory limits of liability.
	

	21 
	08/09/13
	08/09/13
	Section 12 – Proposal Format:  
“Proposals and attachments should be in their original format, no PDFs.”   

Does the City mean if it’s a Word or Excel document that is how you want to receive the information?
	Yes.
	

	22 
	08/09/13
	08/09/13
	Pricing Cost Sheet:  Would it be all right if the City added on other items not listed on the Cost Sheet?
	No.  
If the Vendor has other items that might benefit the City, please provide this information to the Buyer.  If the City deems the addition pertinent, the Buyer will update the cost sheet and post in an Addendum.   

This information should be submitted to the Buyer before the deadline for questions, but the City will entertain adding information after the deadline.

See City Hosted Solution Contract (Attachment #2) Section 4 - Expansion Claus.  
	

	23 
	08/09/13
	08/09/13
	What if the Vendor has suggestions that the City hasn’t thought of asking in the RFP requirements and pricing?  Does the City want to know about those items?
	Yes.

The Vendor can elaborate details in the Management Response Document.  


	

	24 
	08/13/13
	08/16/13
	I have a question regarding section 5.1.1. It says, “… providing Codification Services through a SaaS Solution with governmental agencies similar in size of scope to the City of Seattle.” Does “size of scope” refer to the SaaS Solution or the City of Seattle? 


	5.1
Relevant Experience – Revise and Delete
5.1.1
Vendor must have at least three (3) years of experience providing Codification Services through a SaaS Solution with governmental agencies. similar in size of scope to the City of Seattle. and delivered these services to at least three (3) customers. 

5.1.2
Vendor must be able to demonstrate that they have delivered these services for at least three (3) customers over the  last three (3) years. 



	Replace Minimum Qualification Table with Minimum Qualification A dated 8/16/13.
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	25 
	08/09/13
	08/09/13
	Does the sample contract and SLA need to be included in the Vendor’s Response to the City? 
	See Section 12 – Proposal Format and Organization.  Acceptance & Exception to the City Contract.  

If exceptions are taken to the City’s general terms and conditions (warranties, indemnification, etc.); the City has provided a table of how those exceptions are to be formatted.  The exceptions will be part of the Vendor’s response package to the City.

The SLA Sample (attachment 3) should only be provided if the Vendor has changes to the Sample for the City to consider at the time of Contract.      
	Revision:  Page 20 

Submittal Checklist: 

Strike Required and add the following:

Proposed section

Response Required

Description

Proposed Service Level Agreement 

Required

If applicable and changes are made.



	26 
	08/09/13
	08/09/13
	On the Solicitation Schedule, Page 1, the City lists the Implementation date as July 1, 2014.  

Is that when you want the project started or when the project should be completed?
	The City expects July 1, 2014 as the Go-Live Date.  
	

	27 
	08/13/13
	Pending
	Approximately how many links will need to be re-created by the codifier that currently exist in the Code?


	Pending
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		REVISED PRICING PROPOSAL - RFP - 3160  SMC Codification Services  DATED - 08/16/13

		Instructions to Vendor:

		1		Provide pricing details below to meet full compliance of the Objectives, Scope, and Statement of Work as defined in Sections 4 and 9 and in the Technical Response.
Unless otherwise and specifically provided, the price is all-inclusive and must include all necessary costs including, but not limited to, internet access, hosting services based on a yearly charge as well as supplement updates.  Include pricing for supplemental updates.   Implementation costs shall also include materials, travel, coping costs, incidentals, equipment, insurance and anything necessary to complete system implementation.

		2		Services shall be priced on a firm hourly basis including travel & living expenses, with an estimated number of hours.

		3		List any pricing assumptions and/or notes below the spreadsheet

		4		ASSUMPTIONS:  ESTIMATE SMC PAGES:  3,188/4,250 double coumn. printed pages/per year with eleven updates.

Pricing for Legal Review should be based on the revised page count.

BREAKOUT:
March 2011 - 118 pgs      Sept 2011 - 570 pgs
April 2011 - 88 pgs           Oct  2011 - 86 pgs
May 2011 - 716 pgs          Nov 2011 - 216 pgs
June 2011 - 268 pgs         Feb 2012 - 298 pgs
July 2011 - 422 pgs           March 2012  150 pgs
Aug 2011 - 256 pgs

				COST DETAIL BREAKOUT LISTED BELOW:

				IMPLEMENTATION:   INITIAL FIXED PRICE SETUP  COSTS DETAIL (A) - add or delete "other" costs if applicable

				Item		Qty (if applic)		Unit Cost
per page where applicable.		Total		Notes

				Includes but not limited to:

		A.1		Online Ordinance Codifiation - Initial conversion of HTML files						$   - 0		Includes:  State codes, set up for scope searching, custom table headers, custom interface.

		A.2		1st year hosting fee ( pro rated beginning September 2013)						$   - 0

		A.3		1st year maintenance & support (prorated beginning September 2013)						$   - 0

		A.4		Configure - Web site branding						$   - 0

		A.5		Initial Printing Srvc:  1,400 master pages per year						$   - 0

		A.6		Initial PDF file to in-house Printing/Archinving						$   - 0

		A.7								$   - 0

		A.8								$   - 0

		A.9								$   - 0

		A.10								$   - 0

		A.11								$   - 0

		A.12								$   - 0

		A.13								$   - 0

		A.14								$   - 0

		A.15								$   - 0

				TOTAL						$   - 0

				IMPLEMENTATION:   FIXED SERVICES COSTS DETAIL (B) - add other costs if applicable

				Item		Qty (if applic)		Unit Cost		Total		Notes

		B.1		Design Specification						0

		B.2		Configuration						0

		B.3		Electronic  Conversion of Code						0

		B.4		Installation Assistance						0

		B.5		Project Management						0

		B.6		Testing						0

		B.7		Travel						0

				LIST ADDITIONAL
COSTS BELOW						0

		B.8								0

		B.9								0

		B.10								0

		B.11								0

		B.12								0

		B.13								0

		B.14								0

		B.15								0

				TOTAL						$   - 0

				IIMPLEMENTATIONN TRAINING COSTS DETAIL  (C) - add other costs if applicable

				Detail all classes available including different levels of user training and administrator training if available.

				Item		Qty (if applic)		Unit Cost		Total		Notes

		C.1		End User Training						0

		C.2		Administrator Training						0

		C.3		Training Plans & Materials						0

		C.4								0

		C.5								0

				TOTAL						$   - 0

				IMPLEMENTATIONN ZONING MAPS ONLINE (D) - add other costs if applicable

				See RFP, Section 9 - Desired Features

				Item-Zoning Maps Online		Qty (if applic)		Unit Cost		Total		Notes

		D.1		Initial setup						0

		D.2		Link to sections on website						0

		D.3		Ordinance Search						0

		D.4		Code locator bar						0

		D.5								0

		D.6								0

		D.7								0

				TOTAL						$   - 0

				RECURRING ANNUAL COSTS DETAIL (E, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, M, N, O, P, Q, R, S) - add other costs if applicable

				If multiple options are available, please describe and provide different estimates in the table below.

				Item		QUANTITY
(if applicable)		UNIT COST
per page where applicable.		COST
2014		COST
2015		COST
2016		COST
2017

		E		Annual Hosting Subscription Fee						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		F		Annual Maintenance Fee, if not included above						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		G		Annual Support Fee, if not included above						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		I		Web Posting of ordinances/on-demand supplements between supplements interals						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		J		Annual Printing Srvc:  1,400 master pages per year						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		K		Quarterly Supplements:  132 sets and 350 pages per set						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		L		Complete set of the Code. - Currently one set consists of four volumes and approximately 4,000 pgs w/ binders and tabs  See 9.2 - H						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		M		Printing and shipping						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		N		Editorial (includes online updates)						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		0		Graphics, maps, tables, diagrams						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		P		PDF File fo in-house printing/archiving						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		Q								$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		R								$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		S								$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

				TOTAL						$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

				SUPPLEMENT SERVICES:  (T)  - add other costs if applicable

				If multiple options are available, please describe and provide different estimates in the table below

				Item		Qty (if applic)		Unit Cost		Total		Notes

		T.1		End User Training						0

		T.2		Administrator Training						0

		T.3		Training Plans & Materials						0

										0

										0

				TOTAL						$   - 0

				RECURRING Data storage fee COSTS DETAIL (U) - add other costs if applicable

				If multiple options are available, please describe and provide different estimates in the table below.

				Item		2013		2014		2015		2016				2017

		U.1		Data Storage Fees

				TOTAL		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0

				ADD'L LABOR COSTS - For information only.  Not to be included in evaluation portion (V)

				Please document any cost information not covered in the tables above.  Add any other Labor Costs not included in the list

				Item		Labor Rate		Notes

		V.1		Project Mgmt

		V.2		Software Engineer

		V.3		Sr. Support Engineer

		V.4		Training Specialist

		V.5		Sr. System Analyst

		V.6		Sr. Programmer/Analyst

		V.7		Training Specialist

		V.8		Other:

				OTHER  COST - For information only.  Not to be included in evaluation portion (W)

				Although not a requirement for this phase of work, the City will at the flexibility and adaptability of application to meet emergin business needs.

				Item-Codification of Seattle Administration Code		Qty (if applic)		Unit Cost
per page where applicable.		Total		Notes

		W.1		Review existing and new rules for typographixcal errors, consistency in-style and acxxcuracxy						0

		W.2		conversion of existing code to vendor format						0

		W.3		Enhancement of Seattle Administrative Code						0

		W.4		Automatic update notification						0

		W.5		Complete legal review of current Dept rules						0

		W.6		Mobile setup						0

		W.7		Mobile annual service fee						0

										0

										0

										0

										0

										0

				Total						$   - 0

				OTHER  COST - For information only.  Not to be included in evaluation portion (X)

				Service		UOM (ex: gig)		Year

		X.1		Incremental Additional Storage Cost

				PRICING ASSUMPTIONS AND ADDITIONAL NOTES:

				VENDOR NAME:___________________________________________________________

				AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:________________________________________________

				PRINTED NAME:___________________________________________________

				DATE:____________________
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Title: Codification and Publication Services


Revised 08/16/13  Table A



Per Section 5 of the RFP – PROPOSED MINIMUM QUALFICATIONS SUMMARY TABLE

Please check the applicable box to signify compliance or non-compliance to each minimum qualification.  If you do comply, describe exactly how you achieve each minimum qualification.  The determination that you have achieved all the minimum qualifications is made from this document or a document with the same information.


		Name of Vendor: 





		



		5.1
Relevant Experience

5.1.1
Vendor must have at least three (3) years of experience providing Codification Services through a SaaS Solution with governmental agencies. similar in size of scope to the City of Seattle. and delivered these services to at least three (3) customers. 


Certified Reseller (or Factory Authorized Reseller) –If applicable: 


The Vendor, if other than the manufacturer, shall submit with the proposal a current, dated, and signed authorization from the manufacturer that the Proposer is an authorized distributor, dealer or service representative and is authorized to sell the manufacturer's products. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in bid rejection. This includes the certification to license the product and offer in-house service, maintenance, technical training assistance, and warranty services, including available of spare parts and replacement units if applicable.



		Project 

		Duration of Experience 


(From  mo/year to mo/year)

		Vendor’s Employee Name and Project Role

		Client/Customer Name and contact Information

		

		Go Live Date.  

		Project Description



		1. Year  I:   

		

		

		

		

		

		



		2. Year  II:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		3. Year  III:

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		





The above table is the base of information the City is seeking.  You may modify table to ensure you clearly show compliance to this minimum qualifications.   Please add any other details that are pertinent in meeting the minimum qualifications:  



